
   

Note: These agenda items and estimated times are those reasonably anticipated by the Chair. Not all items listed 
may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may be brought up for discussion. Estimated agenda times 

may need to be changed on the night of the meeting for the sake of expediency. Section numbers correspond to 
agenda packets and are not an indication of the order of the agenda 

Page 1 of 1 

Jacob A. Smith, Chair 
Scott Bastarache 

James Loynd 
Select Board 

 
Bryan Smith 

Town Administrator 
 

TOWN OF ERVING 

SELECT BOARD / WATER COMISSIONERS 
To be held at the Senior & Community Center 

1 CARE DRIVE, ERVING, MASSACHUSETTS 01344 
 
 

Meeting Agenda 
 Monday, January 22, 2024   

This meeting is open to the public.  

 
 

Scheduled Business 
Time Agenda Item 
6:00 PM Call to Order 
6:00 PM Executive Session pursuant to Massachusetts General Law Chapter 30A, Section 21 (a) (3) 
7:00 PM Public Hearing: Review of Public Layout for Bridge Street and Maple Avenue & Order of 

Layout 
Old Business 

Agenda Item  Section 
Review of Flags, Banners, & Signs on Governmental Flagpoles, Buildings & Properties 

Policy Draft- 3rd Reading 
……… 1 

Review of Proposed Personnel Policies & Procedures Manual Draft ……… 2 
Public Hearing: Review of Public Layout for Bridge Street and Maple Avenue & Order of 

Layout 
……… 3 

New Business 
Agenda Item  Section 
Meeting Minutes: January 09, 2023, March 27, 2023, December 18, 2023 ………. 4 
Review and Potential Appointment of Conservation Commission Vacancy Letter of 

Interest- Maureen Black 
………. 5 

Approval of Federal FY2023 Emergency Management Performance Subgrant Award ………. 6 
Discussion Regarding Renewal of Wastewater Agreement with Montague ……… 7 
Review of Town Planner Position Description ……….. 8 
Police Department Letter of Recognition- Officer Bryant ………. 9 
Discussion Regarding Former IP Mill Redevelopment RFP ………. 10 
Review of Non-Union Police Department Personnel Compensation Schedule ………. 11 
 ………..  

Other Business 
Signing of the Treasury Warrant 
 
Executive Session: pursuant to Massachusetts General Law Chapter 30A, Section 21 (a) (3) to discuss strategy 
with respect to collective bargaining …if an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining … 
position of the public body and the chair so declares. (NEPBA 121, Police Unit) 
 
 

Anticipated Next Meeting Dates 
Monday, January 29, 2024 Monday, February 05, 2024 

      



Town of Erving 
Select Board Public Meeting Participation Guidance 

 

The Select Board welcomes residents to communicate questions, comments or concerns. Participants at Select Board 
meetings are notified that the meetings are both video and audio recorded, and comments provided will become part of 
the record.  While offering public input, it is important that the Select Board is also allowed enough time to conduct their 
other business.  The following guidelines have been established to make the best use of time at Select Board meetings. 
 

1. To request time on the Select Board agenda, persons must contact the Town Administrator at (413) 422-2800, 
Ext.1102 or at SBRequests@erving-ma.gov by noon on the Tuesday before the meeting.   

a. Requests will be submitted to the Chairperson for consideration and scheduling.   
b. Supporting documentation related to the request must be provided to the Administrator’s office by noon on 

the Thursday prior to the meeting.  The Chairperson may remove requested agenda topics that are made 
without supporting documentation. 

2. The Select Board encourages public participation as follows: 
a. Town residents can bring comments before the Select Board that require discussion and are on the agenda, 

only after being recognized by the Chair. If your issue is not on the agenda, you may bring it up under “Future 
agenda items”. 

b. “Topics not anticipated” should be brought to the Chair for possible consideration prior to the meeting. 
c. Please try to keep your comments short and to the point.  
d. If it appears that the topic(s) being discussed will consume longer than the time allocated then, at the 

discretion of the Chair, the matter will be placed on an upcoming Select Board meeting agenda. 
e. If you believe that your topic will require more time or desire to make a more formal presentation than is 

allowed under these guidelines, please contact the Town Administrator to ask to be put on a future agenda 
so that we can properly allocate enough time. 

f. You are free to ask questions or to make your point for all to consider. However, engaging in active debate 
with Select Board or audience members will not be allowed. 

g. All comments and questions must be directed to the Chair of the Select Board per MGL Chapter 30A, Section 
20(g). 

h. Participants are expected to speak from the presenter/guest table. 
3. Employees and Board members who have business with the Select Board should be placed on the agenda 

beforehand (see Item # 1.). 
4. Anyone wishing to contact the Select Board in writing may do so at: 

Town of Erving, Attn: Select Board, 12 East Main Street, Erving, Massachusetts 01344 
 

Alternatively, members of the public can complete a Select Board submission form at the meeting sign in table and office 
staff member will follow up. 

 

The Select Board appreciates your cooperation in honoring these guidelines. 
 

From Massachusetts Attorney General Official Website 
 

What public participation in meetings must be allowed? 
Under the Open Meeting Law, the public is permitted to attend meetings of public bodies but is excluded from an 
executive session that is called for a valid purpose listed in the law. Any member of the public also has a right to make an 
audio or video recording of an open session of a public meeting. A member of the public who wishes to record a meeting 
must first notify the Chair and must comply with reasonable requirements regarding audio or video equipment established 
by the chair so as not to interfere with the meeting. The Chair is required to inform other attendees of such recording at 
the beginning of the meeting. 
 

While the public is permitted to attend an open meeting, an individual may not address the public body without 
permission of the Chair. An individual is not permitted to disrupt a meeting of a public body, and at the request of the 
Chair, all members of the public shall be silent. If after clear warning, a person continues to be disruptive, the Chair may 
order the person to leave the meeting, and if the person does not leave, the Chair may authorize a constable or other 
officer to remove the person. 

mailto:SBRequests@erving-ma.gov


 

Flags, Banners & Signs for Governmental Flagpoles, Buildings & Properties Policy  1 

 

 

Flags, Banners & Signs for Governmental Flagpoles, 

Buildings & Properties Policy 

 

Approved:  ________________________________________    Date:  ____________________ 

   
   

Table of Contents 

.01  Issue Date / Effective Date ........................................................................................................................... 1 

.02 Purpose ......................................................................................................................................................... 1 

.03 Applicability................................................................................................................................................. 1 

.04 Policy ........................................................................................................................................................... 1 

.05 Eligible Flags and Order of Precedence ....................................................................................................... 1 

.06 Federal, State, and Local Proclamation of Special Occasion ....................................................................... 2 

.07 Eligible Banners and Signs .......................................................................................................................... 2 

.08 Other Flags ................................................................................................................................................... 2 

.09 Other Banners and Signs .............................................................................................................................. 2 

 
.01  Issue Date / Effective Date 

This policy is issued and effective on ____________. 

 

.02 Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines for the display of flags, banners, and signs on Town 

flagpoles, Town buildings, and Town property. 

 

.03 Applicability 

This policy is applicable to all Town owned flagpoles, buildings, and property. 

 

.04 Policy 

It is the policy of the Town of Erving that all flags, banners, or signs will be displayed in conformance 

with Federal and State laws and this policy. This includes, but is not limited to, the Federal "Our Flag" 

publication and Massachusetts General Law Chapter 2, Section 6 and Section 6A. 

 

.05 Eligible Flags and Order of Precedence 

Only the United States, Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Town of Erving and official flags of the U.S. 

Military and POW/MIA flags may be flown on any Town owned flagpole. Outdoor flags will be flown on 

Town flagpoles in the following order of precedence:  

1. First, the United States flag;  

2. Second, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts flag;  

3. Third, the Town of Erving flag; and  

 

TOWN OF ERVING 
FAC-010 

12 Main Street Policy 

Erving, Massachusetts 01344  

Telephone: (413) 422-2800  
Facsimile: (413) 422-2808  

Email: administrator@erving-ma.gov  
   



 

Flags, Banners & Signs for Governmental Flagpoles, Buildings & Properties Policy  2 

 

4. Fourth, official flags of the U.S. Military and POW/MIA. 

 

.06 Federal, State, and Local Proclamation of Special Occasion  

Flags flown on Town flagpoles shall be displayed in accordance with the standards referenced above in 

Sections .04 and .05. The Select Board, or if time is of the essence, the Town Administrator may order 

flags to be lowered to half-staff including, but not limited to, flags of the United States and the 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts in honor of the death of a Town employee killed in the line of duty, or 

in the observance of a specific event or circumstance, or if ordered by the President of the United States 

or the Governor of the Commonwealth.  

  

.07 Eligible Banners and Signs 

Only banners and signs that are Town sponsored may be erected on or attached to Town buildings or 

Town property. 

 

.08 Other Flags 

The Town's flagpoles are not intended to serve as a forum for free expression by the public. The only 

flags permitted on Town owned flagpoles are those set forth in Section .05., and all other flags are 

prohibited from being flown on any and all Town of Erving flagpoles. 

 

.09 Other Banners and Signs 

Town buildings and other Town property are not intended to serve as a forum for free expression by 

erection on or attachment to banners or signs. The only banners or signs permitted on Town buildings or 

Town property are those set forth in Section .07, and all other banners and signs are prohibited from 

erection on or attachment to any Town building or Town property. 

 



 

Jacob A. Smith, Chair 
Scott Bastarache 

James Loynd 
 Select Board 

 
 

Bryan Smith 
Town Administrator 

 

TOWN OF ERVING 

SELECT BOARD 
 

12 East Main Street 
ERVING, MASSACHUSETTS 01344  

Tel. 413-422-2800 
Fax 413-422-2808 

Email: administrator@erving-ma.gov
 
January 19, 2024 
 
To: Select Board 
 
From: Bryan Smith, Town Administrator 
 
RE: Order or Layout for Maple Avenue and Bridge Street 
 
On Monday, January 8, 2024, the Select Board voted to issue formal notice to the property owners 
on Bridge Street and Maple Avenue of the plans to hold a hearing on the proposal to order the 
layouts as previously presented.  Notices were mailed by certified mail on January 9, 2024.  The 
proposed layouts were posted to the Town website and the notices included a copy of the link.  
Additionally, copies of the layout have been available for review at Town Hall. 
 
The hearing is scheduled for Monday, January 22, 2024 at 7PM and property owners have been 
informed that at the conclusion of the hearing, the Select Board may vote to order the layouts. In 
anticipation of this outcome, I have included draft orders for the Select Board to review. 
 
The Special Town Meeting is scheduled for January 31, 2024 and includes warrant articles to seek 
voter approval for the same layouts. 





 
 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
 
Franklin, ss.        Town of Erving 

                                                                                           January 2024              

Order of Layout of Bridge Street  Page 1 of 1 
 

 
ORDER OF LAYOUT OF BRIDGE STREET 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 82, Sections 21 through 
24, the Select Board having given proper notice of the layout of Bridge Street                
pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 82, Section 22, the Select Board hereby 
vote and thereby layout Bridge Street, more particularly bounded and described as follows: 
 

West Side 
 
Beginning at a set concrete bound on the south line of Route 2, a 1929 Massachusetts State 
Highway Alteration, said concrete bound being 16.42 feet easterly of a point opposite Station 
130+50.57. 
 
Thence S02°44’00”E, a distance of 65.91 feet to a set concrete bound. 
 
Thence S12°40’00”E, a distance of 106.05 feet to a set concrete bound. 
 
Thence S22°04’49”E, a distance of 55.66 feet to a set concrete bound. 
 
Thence S52°14’49”E, a distance of 138.59 feet to a set concrete bound. 
 
Thence S57°37’31”E, a distance of 150 feet, more or less, to the west side of Millers River. 
 

East Side 
 
Beginning at a point on the south line of Route 2, a 1929 Massachusetts State Highway 
Alteration, said point being 112.37 feet easterly of a point opposite Station 130+50.57. 
 
Thence S09°40’00”W, a distance of 71.95 feet to a point. 
 
Thence S02°40’00”E, a distance of 61.99 feet to a point. 
 
Thence S12°40’00”E, a distance of 97.64 feet to a point. 
 
Thence S22°04’49”E, a distance of 38.24 feet to a point. 
 
Thence S52°14’49”E, a distance of 122.93 feet to a point. 
 
Thence S57°37’31”E, a distance of 163 feet, more or less, to the west side of Millers River. 
 
Said layout being 49.5 feet wide from Route 2 to Millers River. 
 
Being more particularly shown on a plan entitled “Layout Plan of Bridge Street in Erving, 
MA” dated January 10, 2024, by Edward C. Muszynski, PLS as filled in the office of the 
Town Clerk. 
 
Witness our hands on this 22nd day of January 2024.  
 
________________________ ___________________ ____________________ 
Jacob A. Smith, Chair   Scott Bastarache   James Loynd 
 





 
 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
 
Franklin, ss.        Town of Erving 

                                                                                           January 2024              

Order of Layout of Maple Avenue  Page 1 of 1 
 

 
ORDER OF LAYOUT OF MAPLE AVENUE 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 82, Sections 21 through 
24, the Select Board having given proper notice of the layout of Maple Avenue                
pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 82, Section 22, the Select Board hereby 
vote and thereby layout Maple Avenue more particularly bounded and described as follows: 
 

West Side 
 

Beginning at a railroad spike set in the pavement on the south line of Route 2, a 1930 
Massachusetts State Highway Alteration, said spike being 172.98 feet easterly of a 
Massachusetts Highway Bound opposite Station 191+08.48. 
 
Thence S15°22’39”E, a distance of 452.47 feet to a stone bound. 
 
Thence S15°12’28”E, a distance of 688.85 feet to a railroad spike set in the pavement. 
 
Thence continuing S15°12’28”E, a distance of 287.82 feet to the end of location. 
 

East Side 
 

Beginning at a railroad spike set in the pavement on the south line of Route 2, a 1930 
Massachusetts State Highway Alteration, said spike being 210.33 feet east of a Massachusetts 
Highway Bound opposite Station 191+08.48. 
 
Thence S15°22’39”E, a distance of 469.96 feet to a set concrete bound. 
 
Thence S15°12’28”E, a distance of 688.96 feet to a set iron pin. 
  
Thence continuing S15°12’28”E, a distance of 287.82 feet to the end of location. 
 
Said layout being 33 feet wide from Route 2 to end of location. 

 
Being more particularly shown on a plan entitled “Plan of Proposed Layout of Maple Avenue 
in the Town of Erving, Massachusetts” dated January 8, 2024, by Edward C. Muszynski, PLS 
as filled in the office of the Town Clerk. 
 
 
Witness our hands on this 22nd day of January 2024.  
 
 
________________________ ___________________ ____________________ 
Jacob A. Smith, Chair   Scott Bastarache   James Loynd 
 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, January 09, 2023 Page 1 of 8 
 

Board:  Select Board / Water Commissioner’s Meeting 
Date:  Monday, January 09, 2023 
Location: Senior & Community Center, 1 Care Drive, Erving, MA 01344 
 
Select Board Present: Jacob Smith, Scott Bastarache, William Bembury 
Finance Committee: Debra Smith, Charles Zilinski, Daniel Hammock 
Also, Present: Bryan Smith, Mariah Kurtz, Jacquelyn Boyden, Peter Sanders, Daniel Watson, 

Richard Newton, Leo Parent Jr., Erik Eichorn, Abigail Baines, Paula Betters, 
Mackensey Bailey 

Press: Otis Wheeler, BNCTV  
 
At 6:36 PM Chairman Smith called the meeting of the Select Board to order. 
 
Discussion Regarding Recycling Center Proposal 
The Select Board members reviewed a memorandum from Bryan Smith, Town Administrator, regarding 
the proposal to establish a formal recycling center at Public Works for the convenience of residents. 
Chairman Smith provided an overview of the estimated costs for the proposed improvements. The Select 
Board members discussed the option to approach the work in phases and the approximate cost of 
$100,000.00 to $120,000.00 with contingency. Selectman Bastarache discussed support for making 
progress on the proposal for a recycling center and expressed support for submitting the project for 
consideration to the Capital Planning Committee. Chairman Smith discussed potential budget 
implications related to the proposal. The Select Board members discussed wanting to review a staffing 
cost estimate that would provide for two (2) days a week, providing for both weekend and afternoon 
opening hours. Bryan will prepare a staffing cost estimate and draft a capital project request. The Select 
Board members will review the topic at a future meeting. 
 
Review of Family and Medical Leave Act Policy Draft- 3rd Reading 
The Select Board members conducted a third reading of the draft Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) 
policy. The Select Board members expressed no concerns and support for approving the policy. Selectman 
Bastarache made a motion to approve the Family and Medical Leave Act policy, ADM 181, effective 
January 9, 2023. Selectman Bembury seconded. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Review of Remote Work Policy- 2nd Reading 
The Select Board members conducted a second reading on the draft Remote Work policy. Selectman 
Bembury expressed no concerns with the draft policy. Selectman Bastarache asked if the policy is a shift 
from the current practice. Bryan explained that the policy is meant to formalize the current practice and 
address items that may not have originally been considered. Chairman Smith requested an edit to the 
first sentence in Section .15. Selectman Bastarache and Chairman Smith both discussed support for 
circulating the draft to department heads and staff for more feedback. Bryan will circulate the draft and 
gather feedback. The Select Board will conduct a third reading at the next meeting. 
 
Review of Proposed Cemetery Commission Bylaw 
The Select Board members reviewed a memorandum from Bryan that proposes two (2) bylaw 
amendments regarding the Cemetery Commission; one article to rescind the previous 1949 Town Meeting 
vote that created the Cemetery Commission and a second article that would re-establish the Cemetery 
Commission with specifications on membership and duties. Selectman Bembury expressed support for 
the proposed articles. Chairman Smith expressed concern about assigning the authority to appoint staff 
of the Cemetery. Chairman Smtih suggested amending the duties to include making recommendations 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, January 09, 2023 Page 2 of 8 
 

regarding staff for the care of the Cemetery to the Select Board. The Select Board members expressed 
agreement to the proposed amendment. Chairman Smith asked the Select Board members if the 
proposed articles should be included on the next Special Town Meeting warrant. The Select Board 
members expressed agreement. 
 
Review of Meeting Minutes of December 05, 2022 
The Select Board members passed over this agenda topic. 
 
Review of Meeting Minutes of December 19, 2022 
The Select Board members passed over this agenda topic. 
 
Calendar Year 2023 Business Licenses 
The Select Board members reviewed a memorandum from Bryan regarding the proposed license renewals 
for calendar year 2023.  Chairman Smith explained that the Select Board is reviewing some late license 
renewal requests and that the businesses are current on their taxes. The Select Board members expressed 
no concerns with approving the license renewals. Chairman Smith made a motion to issue a Class II/ 
Automotive Repair/Sell Second-hand Vehicles license to Accurate Automotive Services, Inc, at 21 Lester 
Street, expiring December 31, 2023; and an Auto & Marine Repair license to Johnson Auto & Marine 
Service, at 97 Mountain Road, expiring December 31, 2023, with an issue date of tonight for both. 
Selectman Bembury seconded. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Review & Approval of 2022 Alcoholic Beverages Annual Report  
The Select Board members reviewed the 2022 Alcoholic Beverages Annual report. Chairman Smith 
reviewed the report that shows that five (5) licenses were issued, with a total amount of fees collected of 
$1,925.00, and no violations that the Town is aware of. Selectman Bastarache made a motion to approve 
the Alcoholic Beverages Annual Report 2023 for calendar year 2022. Selectman Bembury seconded. Vote: 
Unanimously approved. 
 
Review & Approval of Renewal Certification Report 
The Select Board members reviewed the Renewal Certification Report for 2023, noting that no 
establishments failed to renew their licenses for 2023. Selectman Bastarache made a motion to approve 
the Renewal Certification for 2023. Chairman Smith seconded. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Review & Approval of 2023 Seasonal Population Estimation Form 
The Select Board members reviewed the 2023 Seasonal Population Estimation form. Chairman Smith 
explained that the Town anticipates no significant changes to the seasonal population in July and 
estimates 1,800 residents for 2023. The Select Board members expressed no concerns. Selectman 
Bastarache made a motion to approve the 2023 Seasonal Population Increase Estimation Form. 
Selectman Bembury seconded. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Review & Issuance of the 11th Water Commitment for FY2023 
The Water Commissioners reviewed the 11th Water Commitment for FY2023 for backflow water charges, 
in the aggregate amount of $560.00. Chairman Smith made a motion to approve the 11th Water 
Commitment for FY2023 in the amount of $560.00, for the testing of backflow prevention devices. 
Commissioner Bastarache seconded. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
  



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, January 09, 2023 Page 3 of 8 
 

Issuance of Cemetery Deeds # 575-582 
Selectman Bembury expressed concerns about issuing deeds to individuals who do not currently live in 
Erving, noting the limited availability of plots in the Cemetery. Selectman Bembury noted understanding 
the concerns and balancing those with the needs of current residents and suggested formalizing it as a 
policy and procedure. Selectman Bembury further clarified that he would support approving the current 
deed requests but would request support for a motion to not approve deed requests for non-Erving 
residents in the future. The Select Board members acknowledged the concerns and agreed to revisit the 
topic. 
 
Selectman Bastarache made a motion to issue the following deeds to the right of burial in Erving Center 
Cemetery: 

• Deed number 575 for lot number 357A, to Deborah Ann White and Raymond James Mayhew, Jr.; 
and 

• Deed number 576 for lot number 357B, to Deborah Ann White and Kathleen Ann Mayhew; and 
• Deed number 577 for lot number 357C, to Deborah Ann White; and 
• Deed number 578 for lot number 357D, to Deborah Ann White and Daniel Richard White; and 
• Deed number 579 for lot number 358A, to Deborah Ann White and Paul Frederick Mayhew; and 
• Deed number 580 for lot number 358B, to Deborah Ann White and Amy Kathleen Mayhew; and 
• Deed number 581 for lot number 358C, to Deborah Ann White and Kody Dean Mayhew; and 
• Deed number 582 for lot number 358D, to Deborah Ann White and Bernadette Theodore Marx 

 
Chairman Smith seconded. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Joint Meeting with Finance Committee- Review of FY2024 Budget Requests- Health & Human Services, 
Culture & Recreation, Public Works, and General Government 
At 7:06 PM Chairman Smith called the joint meeting of the Select Board and the Finance Committee to 
order. 
 
Review of the Board of Health & Health Department Budget Request 
Leo Parent, Board of Health Chair, joined the meeting to review the FY2024 budget request of $92,416.00.    
Leo reviewed the highlights & challenges that the Board has worked through in FY2023 that includes the 
offering of a CPR course, and the transition of the shared Health Agent from the District into the Town of 
Erving. Leo discussed the hiring of Claudia Sarti and the Oversight Committee reviewing the newly formed 
agreement by June 30, 2023.  Bryan explained transition plan for the shared Health Agent service in the 
budget. Selectman Bastarache discussed additional potential cost of insurance for staff members. 
Chairman Smith explained that under the new arrangement, Erving is taking on the leadership role for 
the relationship with the towns of Northfield and Shutesbury. Selectman Bastarache clarified that Claudia 
has served as the Town’s Health Agent for more than four (4) years and the change was only to internalize 
the service for the Town. The Select Board and the Finance Committee members expressed no concerns 
at this time.  
 
Review of the Senior & Community Center Budget Request 
Paula Betters, Senior Center Director, joined the meeting to review the FY2024 budget request of 
$182,749.00. Paula reviewed the highlights and challenges experienced in FY2023, noting that there were 
minimal challenges with reopening the Center. Paula explained the loss of the regular lunch service and 
that she is exploring options to provide an alternative service for lunchtime. Paula discussed the strong 
turnout for programs with new senior participants, highlighting that the exercise classes are meeting the 
capacity of the space and may need to be broken into more frequent offerings to accommodate the 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, January 09, 2023 Page 4 of 8 
 

interest. Paula discussed the concept of an “emerging senior” and efforts to align programs and services 
to this demographic. Paula discussed the efforts to hire for the Activities Coordinator position and 
explained the goal of exploring evening programs and intergenerational programming. Paula discussed 
the potential programs with the Elementary School. Paula explained the rationale for increasing the 
budget requests for purchased services and for electricity. Selectman Bastarache asked about the 
increased usage of the Center and Paula provided explanations. Selectman Bastarache explained that he 
wants to see more senior and family programming as the Activities Coordinator comes on board. The 
Select Board and Finance Committee members discussed wanting to further explore the community 
aspect of the facility with Paula. The Select Board and the Finance Committee members expressed no 
further concerns at this time.  
 
Review of the Veterans Services Budget Request 
Bryan reviewed the FY2024 budget request of $42,500.00. Bryan explained that he is requesting a level 
funded budget for the Upper Pioneer Valley Veterans Services District assessment and for the benefits 
line item and is suggesting the creation of a new line item in the amount of $2,000.00 to support the 
Veterans recognition banner program that was recently established. The Select Board and the Finance 
Committee members expressed no concerns at this time.  
 
At 7:46 PM Daniel Hammock recused himself as a member of the Finance Committee. 
 
Review of the Library Budget Request   
On behalf of the Library Trustees, Daniel provided some history for how the FY2024 budget request, in 
the amount of $243,675.00, was developed.  Daniel discussed some of the fixed costs changes as well as 
the review of position descriptions and revised classifications. Mackensey Bailey, Trustee, and Abigail 
Baines, Library Director, joined the meeting. Mackensey reviewed the highlights and challenges for the 
Library in FY2023, noting the pilot for new open hours for the Library that have attracted young children 
and seniors. Mackensey explained efforts to expand programming and the increased attendance at the 
Library, in general, and for programming. Mackensey discussed the settling of staffing with the hiring of 
the new Director and noted the challenges to complete the punch list on the construction project which 
includes the LEED certification. Mackensey discussed the increase in service costs, noting both the 
challenges as well as appreciation for the demand for programming. Abigail discussed the growing pains 
that have been experienced while transitioning from the projections that were made for operations with 
the building use assumptions and the experienced costs of running the new facility. Chairman Smith asked 
again for solar performance analysis.  Bryan explained that the Town has received the analysis of the 
building’s energy consumption against the modeling and has been waiting for the solar generation 
analysis from the engineers. Abigail discussed the LEED certification process and explained that it requires 
Energy Star monitoring of the electrical systems. Chairman Smith asked about LEED certification status. 
Abigail provided an update on her work with the project architect to apply for certification from the Green 
Building Council.   
 
Returning to the FY2024 budget request, Selectman Bastarache asked about the new positions at the 
Library. Mackensey clarified that there were newly approved position descriptions for existing staff 
members and that the Trustees followed the classification schedule. Abigail discussed the Library staffs 
efforts to increase programming while learning from the community what is needed. Abigail explained 
that the Department still relies on volunteers for programming support and that the FY2024 budget 
request includes an increase of $1,500.00 to support those efforts with the understanding that most 
programs are funded by grants.  Abigal reviewed the Library’s statistics for use in the past year. Chairman 
Smith discussed the potential for Library, Senior & Community Center, and Recreation Commission to 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, January 09, 2023 Page 5 of 8 
 

jointly survey the community and solicit feedback. Mackensey and Abigail discussed ongoing programing 
and the waiting list that has developed for crafts.  The Select Board and the Finance Committee members 
expressed no further concerns at this time.  
 
At 8:08 PM Daniel Hammock rejoined the joint meeting. 
 
Review of the Recreation Commission Budget Request 
Jacquelyn Boyden and Erik Eichorn, Recreation Commissioners, joined the meeting to review the budget 
request in the amount of $142,623.00. Erik reviewed the challenges the Commission has experienced in 
FY2023, noting the rebuilding of the Commission membership. Erik noted the restoration of Summer Park 
program after the COVID-19 challenges made it difficult to operate the program. Erik also discussed the 
return of Trunk or Treat and Rag Shag Parade events for Halloween. Erik discussed challenges that were 
experienced with the seasonal sports programs, noting the reduction in registrations. Erik explained that 
the Commission is hopeful for a strong basketball registration. Regarding goals for FY2024, Erik discussed 
approaching new strategies for reaching out to the residents with direct mailings and continuing to use 
existing media. Jacquelyn discussed the use of sub-committees and committing to a regular meeting 
schedule for the Commission.  Jacquelyn discussed revisiting the strategic plan for park improvements.  
Jacquelyn explained that the Commission is in support of the proposed shared use path and discussed the 
Commission’s goal of adding community events. Chairman Smith asked for further review of the expenses 
for park maintenance and ground maintenance.  Bryan will review the expense history. Selectman 
Bembury asked about the status of new park signage, explaining his concerns about clearly 
communicating the rules and expectations for using the Town’s parks. Jacquelyn explained that the 
signage is in the works of being finalized. The Select Board and the Finance Committee members 
expressed no further concerns at this time.  
 
Review of the Historical Commission Budget Request 
The Select Board and Finance Committee members passed over this agenda topic. 
 
Review of the Town Clerk Office & Elections Budget Requests 
Richard Newton, Town Clerk, joined the meeting to review the FY2024 budget request in the amount of 
$54,848.00. Richard reviewed the highlights and challenges of FY2023 for his office, noting the nuanced 
changes in election laws, and further procedures enacted by the Secretary of State’s office for weekly 
updates and conferences until the State election in November 2022. Richard discussed the progress that 
has been made on the Bylaw codification project with a goal of completing the work in FY2024.  Richard 
discussed the State’s work to implement revisions for a new Vitals Records integrated system with all 
stakeholders, including Town Clerks. Richard noted that all Town Clerks are awaiting an update to the 
Statewide Voter registration system. Richard discussed the work that has been done to respond to public 
records requests and explained the exploration of new software for licensing, cemetery management, and 
board & commission management. Regarding the budget request, Richard explained that the wages 
section was adjusted in accordance with the compensation schedule and reflects an overall reduction 
because there are only two (2) elections in the coming Fiscal Year. The Select Board and the Finance 
Committee members expressed no concerns at this time.  
 
Review of the Water Department Budget Request 
Peter Sanders, Water & Wastewater Superintendent, joined the meeting to review the Water Department 
budget request in the amount of $105,240.00. Peter discussed the launch of the new Per- and 
Polyfluorinated Substances (PFAS) testing programs for all three (3) public water systems that the Town 
oversees. Peter discussed the work in FY2023 for the inspection, repainting, and repair of fire hydrants 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, January 09, 2023 Page 6 of 8 
 

throughout the system as well as an effort to replace problematic meters. Peter explained the requested 
line-item increases related to changes in water testing requirements and well and pump station 
maintenance. Chairman Smith asked about the line item for distribution licenses. Peter explained that 
relicensing occurs every two (2) years. The Select Board and the Finance Committee members expressed 
no further concerns at this time.  
 
Review of the Wastewater Department Budget Request 
Peter reviewed the Wastewater Department budget request in the amount of $1,062,111.00. Peter 
discussed the new nitrogen testing requirements that are the result of the newest Federal and State 
permits. Peter discussed the anticipated cost increases and therefore the requested increases for 
electricity and maintenance line items. Peter discussed the importance of rebuilding the maintenance line 
items to care for the collection and treatment systems. Selectman Bembury asked if the Wastewater 
Department was participating in the State program to monitor COVID-19 levels. Peter explained that the 
Town was interested in participation, but that the system was too small to participate. Daniel noted that 
much of the requested increases are directly related to external costs and regulatory changes. Bryan 
offered the context for the increases and maintenance requests as the Department is transitioning some 
maintenance costs from former special articles to the annual operating budget. Debra asked for an 
explanation of the unforeseen overtime costs, noting that the actual expenses have exceeded the 
budgeted amount. Peter explained that the line item was used to help cover staff time on special projects 
and response to alarm calls. Chairman Smith added that the line item also covers staff costs for call back 
and overtime for regular weekend coverage. Chairman Smith raised concern that the overtime 
expenditure for FY2023 will again exceed the appropriation. Debra asked for an explanation about the 
regular weekend coverage expectations and why it’s associated with the overtime line item.  Peter 
discussed the long-standing practice in the Department and explained that he is exploring if it is possible 
to reduce reporting requirements with the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection 
(MassDEP) 
 
Chairman Smith noted the issues associated with estimating the usage of fuel and gas and predicting cost 
increase.  Bryan discussed the review that had been done for budgetary line items and the additional 
tracking for costs related to testing. Chairman Smith discussed the option to consolidate the line item for 
the River Street pumpstation into the other line items that better define its use. Chairman Smith asked 
about the increased spending in consulting. Bryan explained that those costs were directly related to the 
reviews needed for the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permitting process that 
the Town underwent. Chairman Smith discussed rolling the line item for capital into line item for 
maintenance.  Bryan discussed renaming line items to be clearer about intended purpose. The Select 
Board and Finance Committee members expressed agreement. Selectman Bastarache discussed sewer 
historical review of the maintenance line item and expressed concern about over funding the line item if 
not needed. Peter provided some examples of costs that are unexpected when issues in the collection 
system arise, such as inspectional cameras and jetting. Regarding the unforeseen overtime line item, 
Selectman Bastarache explained that the use of that line item for the weekend coverage can actually be 
anticipated and does not belong in that line item. Debra expressed concern about consistently scheduling 
overtime and discussed wanting to understand how scheduling can be structured to cover reporting 
requirements.   
 
Discussion Regarding Water Dept. Project for Distribution System Lead Assessment & Potential SRF 
Forgivable Loan Opportunity 
The Select Board and Finance Committee members reviewed a memorandum from Peter Sanders, Water 
& Wastewater Superintendent, and a professional engineering services proposal from Tighe & Bond to 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, January 09, 2023 Page 7 of 8 
 

conduct the Lead Service Line Replacement Plan and Inventory as required by MassDEP and the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Chairman Smith provided an overview of the topic. Peter 
provided an explanation of the new EPA requirements and assessment regarding lead in the public water 
distribution systems. Peter discussed the potential to apply for a State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan that can 
be 100% refunded.  Peter discussed the scope of the project work to identify service lines that are lead 
and galvanized. Debra asked about risk to system.  Peter and Bryan explained that the Town’s system is 
expected to be a lower risk because of its age. Selectman Bembury asked about the current testing that 
is done for lead in the water system. Peter explained that the Town currently tests for lead in the water 
system and that to date all results were under limits. Peter discussed the strategic testing of locations to 
obtain a representative sample. Debra asked for information about available assistance to property 
owners that may have a connection to the system that contains lead. Debra also asked what would happen 
if the Town does not comply with the request from MassDEP. Bryan believes that the Town will be notified 
of the approval of a forgivable loan application by the Town Meeting. Peter noted that the resulting 
inventory report will be available publicly. Chairman Smith raised concern about the replacement plan 
component of the required work and how it may impact the customers of the system.  Bryan speculated 
about the program to potential support for property owners. 
 
Chairman Smith expressed concern about the statewide scope of this project and his preference to allow 
the State to pay for associated cost. Daniel expressed concern about the potential impact to homeowners 
who may not have the means to mitigate lead service pipes that are identified. The Select Board and 
Finance Committee members discussed needing to better understand the requirements of the 
replacement plan portion of the project, the available support for homeowners and the potential impact 
to property owners. Debra explained that the Capital Planning Committee wants to know what other 
communities are doing around the timeline with the State and the potential to advocate for more time. 
Selectman Bastarache discussed his support for public safety initiatives but noted that he still has 
questions. Chairman Smith wants the Town to follow up with MassDEP regarding the program and its 
requirements for the SRF loan funds, including: is there sufficient funding available for the Town; and will 
MassDEP contract for the professional services to conduct the plan because the Town’s system serves 
fewer than 10,000 people; and is the Town guaranteed forgiveness; and  does the Town have to carry a 
long term debt service until 2024 when the loan may be forgiven? The Select Board and Finance 
Committee will review the topic at the next meeting. 
 
Discussion Regarding Scheduling a Special Town Meeting  
The Select Board and Finance Committee members reviewed a memorandum from Bryan regarding the 
article requests to be considered for inclusion on a potential Special Town Meeting warrant. Chairman 
Smith reviewed the topics, that include authorization to pay bills of a prior year, amendments to the 
FY2023 operating budget for the Education and Board of Health budgets, as well as amendments to the 
F2023 capital budget, and asked the Select Board and Finance Committee members if they would like to 
review a draft Special Town Meeting warrant, including these items, at the next joint meeting. Selectman 
Bembury and Selectman Bastarache both expressed agreement. Daniel Hammock also expressed support 
for reviewing a draft warrant. Bryan will prepare the draft for review at the next joint meeting. 
 
At 9:47 PM Chairman Smith made a motion to adjourn the joint meeting of the Select Board and the 
Finance Committee and to continue with the Select Board meeting. Daniel Hammock seconded.  Vote: 
Unanimously approved. 
 
Review of Request for Qualifications for Town Hall Feasibility Study 
The Select Board members passed over this agenda topic. 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, January 09, 2023 Page 8 of 8 
 

 
Review of Proposed Personnel Bylaw Draft- 4th Reading 
The Select Board members passed over this agenda topic. 
 
Review of Proposed Personnel Policies & Procedures Manual Draft- 4th Reading 
The Select Board members passed over this agenda topic. 
 
Review of Bid Documents for Wheelock Street Culvert Replacement Project 
The Select Board members reviewed the draft procurement documents and specifications for the 
Wheelock Street culvert replacement project. Chairman Smith explained that the Capital Planning 
Committee has reviewed the project and suggest proceeding. Selectman Bastarache discussed his review 
of the plans, and the Select Board members discussed the scope of work in the base bid and the bid 
alternate. The Select Board members expressed agreement to approve the bid documents. Selectman 
Bastarache made a motion to release the bid documents for the Wheelock Street culvert improvement 
project. Selectman Bembury seconded. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Appointment of Activities Coordinator Preliminary Screening Committee Members 
The Select Board members reviewed a memorandum from Bryan, recommending the appointment of 
Hilda Worden and Janis Fuller as members of the Activities Coordinator Preliminary Screening Committee. 
Selectman Bastarache made a motion to appoint Hilda Worden and Janis Fuller to the Activities 
Coordinator Preliminary Screening Committee. Selectman Bembury seconded. Vote: Unanimously 
approved. 
 
Adjournment 
At 9:56 PM Chairman Smith made a motion to adjourn. Selectman Bastarache seconded.  Vote: 
Unanimously approved. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Bryan Smith 
Town Administrator 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, March 27, 2023 Page 1 of 9 
 

Board:  Select Board / Water Commissioner’s Meeting 
Date:  Monday, March 27, 2023 
Location: Senior & Community Center, 1 Care Drive, Erving, MA 01344 
 
Select Board Present:   Jacob Smith, William Bembury, Scott Bastarache 
Finance Committee:  Debra Smith, Charles Zilinski, Benjamin Fellows, Daniel Hammock 
Capital Planning Committee: Debra Smith, Benjamin Fellows, Jacob Smith, Linda Downs-Bembury, 

Peter Mallet 
 
At 6:01 PM Chairman Smith called the meeting to order. 
 
Executive Session 
At 6:01 PM Chairman Smith made a motion to enter Executive Session pursuant to Massachusetts General 
Law Chapter 30A, Section 21 (a) (2) to conduct strategy sessions in preparation for negotiations with 
nonunion personnel and to conduct contract negotiations with nonunion personnel regarding the Chief 
of Police. Selectman Bastarache seconded. Roll call vote: 
 Selectman Bembury Aye 
 Selectman Bastarache Aye 
 Chairman Smith Aye 
 
Chairman Smith announced that the Select Board will return to Open Session after the Executive Session.  
 
The Select Board resumed Regular Session at 6:50 PM. 
 
Review of Surplus Equipment Request- Police Dept- 3rd Reading 
The Select Board members conducted a third reading of the surplus equipment request for the Police 
Department for the disposal of one (1) HP desktop printer model Q5987A (sn: CNTBB70780), and one (1) 
computer monitor model EZX15F (sn: AAX4302B01723). The Select Board members expressed no 
concerns with the request. Selectman Bastarache made a motion to deem the Police surplus property, 
which is a Vision computer monitor and a printer, no value on either one, to be disposed of properly. 
Selectman Bembury seconded. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Review of Multi-year Residential Curbside Collection Contract Negotiations 
The Select Board members reviewed a memorandum from Bryan Smith, Town Administrator, regarding 
the status of the procurement for the multi-year residential curbside collection agreement with Casella 
Waste Management of Massachusetts, Inc.  Selectman Bastarache provided an update on his negotiation 
with representatives from Casella, including the discussion of adding a floor in the requested fuel 
surcharge article that will allow for a credit if costs are reduced. Selectman Bastarache discussed the 
addition of language requiring notification by March 1st annually about the fee increase for budget 
planning purposes and to lock in the actual fuel usage percentage in the contract. Attachment A needs to 
be revised to ensure that the formula uses a rate of $5.25 for the ceiling prior to resulting in a fuel 
surcharge. The Select Board members reviewed the rates for the Almost Anything Goes residential bulky 
waste collection program. Selectman Bembury made a motion to engage Casella Waste Management of 
Massachusetts, Inc. to render the service of collection and disposal of household solid waste and 
recyclables, for a term of three (3) years commencing on July 1, 2023 and ending on June 30, 2026, and 
upon mutual agreement of the parties, the Agreement may extend or renew for one (1) additional two-
year term, and to authorize Bryan Smith, Town Administrator, to execute all necessary agreements. 
Selectman Bastarache seconded. Vote: Unanimously approved. 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, March 27, 2023 Page 2 of 9 
 

Review of Meeting Minutes for March 6, 2023 
The Select Board members reviewed the meeting minutes for Monday, March 06, 2023. Selectman 
Bembury made a motion to approve the meeting minutes for March 06, 2023, as written. Selectman 
Bastarache seconded. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Review of Meeting Minutes for February 17, 2023 
The Select Board members reviewed the meeting minutes for Friday, February 17, 2023. Selectman 
Bastarache made a motion to approve the meeting minutes for February 17, 2023, as written. Selectman 
Bembury seconded. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Review of Meeting Minutes for March 13, 2023 
The Select Board members passed over this agenda item. 
 
Review of Bylaw Requests for Annual Town Meeting 
Review of Minutes Bylaw: The Select Board members reviewed the proposed bylaw regarding meeting 
minutes from Richard Newton, Town Clerk. Selectman Bembury expressed concern about Section 9, 
regarding penalties for violations of the bylaw, and suggested striking the Section.  Selectman Bastarache 
also expressed concern about the severity of the proposed penalties while explaining his general support 
for the proposed bylaw. Selectman Bastarache asked about considerations that were made in the draft 
language for State requirements. Richard explained the research conducted, reviewing the bylaws of 
other Massachusetts communities. Richard discussed the challenges that he has experienced getting 
boards and committees to file minutes with the Town Clerk’s office. Selectman Bastarache asked if there 
are concerns that minutes are being kept. Richard clarified his concerns.  Selectman Bastarache expressed 
support for Sections 1 through 8 of the proposed bylaw without the penalty Section, while expressing 
understanding of the concerns expressed by Richard. Chairman Smith expressed agreement.   
 
Review of Bylaw Editorial Changes Bylaw: The Select Board members reviewed the proposed bylaw 
regarding authorization to allow the Town Clerk to make non-substantive editorial changes to bylaws. The 
Select Board members expressed no concerns with the proposed bylaw language and support for inclusion 
on the Town Meeting warrant. The Select Board members agreed to table further conversation on this 
topic. 
 
Joint Meeting with Finance Committee & Capital Planning Committee 
At 7:07 PM Chairman Smith called the joint meeting of the Select Board, Finance Committee and Capital 
Planning Committee to order. Debra Smith, Charles Zilinski, Benjamin Fellows, and Daniel Hammock of 
the Finance Committee and Linda Downs-Bembury and Peter Mallet of the Capital Planning Committee 
joined the meeting. 
 
Review of FY2024 Budget Requests & Projected Revenue 
The Select Board, Finance Committee and Capital Planning Committee members reviewed the revised 
FY2024 budget summary sheet and discussed sources of funding and adjustments that have been made. 
Chairman Smith summarized the revisions to the summary document, noting that it includes the changes 
in the School Department request, of a net reduction of $230,000.00, from the last School Committee 
meeting. Selectman Bastarache asked to revise the budget summary to include a potential place holder 
of $150,000.00 for the School Department, for base wage adjustments for Town departments, and for 
licensing in the Information Technology Department. Debra suggested adding a placeholder for debt 
service payments for the Church Street Bridge project. Selectman Bastarache expressed agreement and 
discussed the need to source the funding from the capacity to Raise and Appropriate. Bryan asked if there 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, March 27, 2023 Page 3 of 9 
 

should be a placeholder for the $20,000.00 grant match for the Historical Commission’s historic structure 
inventory project. Debra discussed previous considerations for establishing an account to provide for 
grant matching funds when applications are considered, like the Finance Committee’s Reserve Fund. 
Selectman Bastarache suggested funding the $273,000.00 for the repayment to the General Stabilization 
Fund, for the Public Library construction project, from Free Cash. 
 
Discussion Regarding Church Street Bridge Project & Next Steps 
The Select Board, Finance Committee, and Capital Planning Committee members reviewed a 
memorandum from Bryan regarding the status of the Church Street Bridge replacement project and 
options to fund the project that include executing the debt authorization that was approved at Town 
Meeting in May 2022 for $1.6 Million or to explore Federal and/or State funding through the Franklin 
County Transportation Planning Organization (FCTPO) through the regional Transportation Improvement 
Plan (TIP). Chairman Smith provided a general overview of the project status and discussed the challenges 
with funding and the various anticipated timelines. Chairman Smith expressed support for pursing the TIP 
funding for the project. Selectman Bembury also expressed support for seeking funding through the TIP. 
Bryan discussed the multi-year TIP funding, explaining that the plan encompasses five (5) years of planned 
projects. As a Finance Committee member, Daniel Hammock discussed thoughts on the project and his 
support to explore the TIP funding option to avoid a debt service.  Daniel Hammock noted that he wants 
to be sensitive to residents of Church Street if they feel differently.  Linda discussed her observations that 
there has been less speeding and traffic on Church Street since the Bridge was reduced to a single lane, 
with less impact on the residents. Daniel Watson discussed the traffic concerns on North Street and 
discussed concerns about waiting more than necessary for the Bridge to be restored. Peter Mallet 
discussed the impact, as a resident on North Street, of the increased traffic and issues navigating the 
partial closure with the Bridge but expressed a willingness to wait if there is a chance to have a Federal 
and/or State funding source for the project. Chairman Smith discussed the different timelines and 
explained that there is an estimated difference of approximately six (6) months between outcomes.  
 
Debra asked to speak with Robert Holst, Chief of Police, and Glenn McCrory, Highway Superintendent, to 
speak to the noted concerns about traffic in the area of Church Street and North Street and the issues of 
not adhering to posted signage. Chief Holst joined the meeting and explained that the noted traffic 
concerns have not resulted in more accidents.  Chief Holst discussed the impact of moving traffic over to 
North Street, instead of Church Street. Chief Holst noted that the Police Department continues to run 
radar in the area. Chief Holst explained that he cannot specifically identify a safety concern other than the 
switch in quantity of vehicles traditionally traveling on Church Street to the lower section of North Street. 
Glenn also joined the meeting and explained that if the Town was to wait to pursue the TIP funding, he 
would want the bridge engineers to come back to reinspect the condition of the Church Street Bridge with 
the weight of the of the concrete barriers that were required to be placed on the Bridge for the partial 
closure. Linda asked about the options to institute one way traffic on North Street and Church Street. 
Peter Mallet expressed concern about the impact of traffic in front of his home with further changes to 
traffic patterns with one-way restrictions. Kelly Loynd discussed the experience of using Church Street for 
local traffic and noted the concern for family members living along the Street.  
 
James Loynd asked if the Town could pursue both paths, of borrowing and exploring funding from the TIP. 
The Select Board members discussed some of the complex considerations of each option and where 
decision points would diverge in regard to timelines. Selectman Bastarache suggested that another option 
would be to take the necessary funding from the General Stabilization Fund with a plan for repayment, 
noting that both borrowing scenarios would cost the Town approximately $500,000.00 in interest. Debra 
expressed the concern of multiple capital projects relying on the General Stabilization Fund. The Select 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, March 27, 2023 Page 4 of 9 
 

Board members discussed the Financial Reserves Policy and Bryan reviewed the policy requirements. 
Selectman Bastarache discussed his view on the annual debt service concept, and his preference for 
repaying to the General Stabilization Fund rather than paying a financial institution. Linda expressed 
concerns about the use of the General Stabilization Fund and expressed support for seeking Federal 
and/or State funding. Selectman Bastarache expressed support for proceeding with the TIP funding 
process and discussed his understanding of the concerns from residents about safety and inconvenience 
with the Bridge restrictions. Selectman Bembury expressed agreement. 
 
Finance Committee Recommendation: Daniel Hammock made a motion to recommend that the Select 
Board proceed with the TIP funding.  Charles seconded. Finance Committee Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Linda and Peter Mallet also expressed support for further exploring the TIP funding process. Chief Holst 
discussed the concerns on North Street. Bryan suggested scheduling a meeting with residents to discuss 
concerns and mitigation options. 
 
Discussion Regarding Accepting Massachusetts Historical Commission Grant for Inventory Project 
The Select Board, Finance Committee, and Capital Planning Committee members reviewed a 
memorandum from Bryan regarding the Massachusetts Historical Commission tentative grant award. 
Chairman Smith asked about the discrepancy between the memorandum stating that it is a $40,000.00 
project with $20,000.00 coming from the grant award, and the award letter that states that it is a 
$25,000.00 grant award. Bryan and Mariah explained that the grant award letter had an error in it and 
confirmed that the grant award is for $20,000.00 with a required 50% match from the Town of $20,000.00. 
Selectman Bastarache discussed support for the inclusion of the additional $20,000.00 for the project on 
the Capital Improvement Plan, sourced from Free Cash. Selectman Bembury expressed agreement. 
Chairman Smith asked if there is sufficient staff capacity to support the Historical Commission with the 
project. Mariah indicated that there is sufficient capacity. Debra explained that the Capital Planning 
Committee is in favor of the project when it was previously discussed. The Finance Committee members 
discussed the request. Daniel Hammock communicated support to conduct the historical structures 
inventory. Charles also expressed support for funding the one-time project out of Free Cash. 
 
Chairman Smith made a motion to accept the $20,000.00 grant from Massachusetts Historical 
Commission, for the Erving Inventory project, and authorize Mariah Kurtz to send a confirmation letter 
and to fund the matching $20,000.00 from Free Cash in our Annual Town Meeting warrant. Selectman 
Bastarache seconded. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Review of FY2024 Budget Requests & Projected Revenue (revisited) 
Returning to the review of the FY2024 budget requests and projected revenue, Chairman Smith noted 
that the Select Board and Finance Committee will begin to discuss potential wage adjustments at the next 
joint meeting and suggested budgeting a placeholder amount for now. Selectman Bastarache expressed 
agreement and suggested holding at least $50,000.00. Chairman Smith suggested earmarking $60,000.00. 
The Finance Committee and Select Board members expressed agreement.  
 
Regarding increased software licensing costs for all town-wide system users, Bryan explained that the 
subscription licenses are being changed to comply with the security and functionality requirements of the 
insurance company. The estimated increase in software licensing for FY2024 is $17,000.00. Bryan noted 
that the new licensing levels may allow the Town to consolidate services to a single platform and 
discontinue separate licensing for other security services. Chairman Smith further clarified that the Town 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, March 27, 2023 Page 5 of 9 
 

uses some additional add-on licenses for most users and that similar features would be included in the 
new licensing and would allow the Town to discontinue use of some of the add-ons.   
Based on those proposed changes, Selectman Bastarache stated that the funding gap between available 
revenue sources from the capacity to Raise and Appropriate, and the budget requests increase to 
$207,057.00. Selectman Bastarache discussed the suggestion on the earmark of $400,000.00 for the 
funding of Capital Improvement Plan capacity. Selectman Bastarache expressed his understanding of the 
request but explained that he feels it should be part of a Stabilization Fund appropriation request.  Debra 
clarified that the Select Board had requested that not all Free Cash was to be appropriated so the Capital 
Planning Committee had amended the funding proposal to use the $400,000.00 from the Raise and 
Appropriate capacity to fund the Capital Improvement Plan. Bryan reviewed the proposed sources for 
funding the Capital Improvement Plan. Selectman Bastarache invited suggestions on how to close the 
$207,057.00 anticipated funding gap in the capacity to Raise and Appropriate. Bryan suggested moving 
$273,000.00 for the repayment of the Public Library construction project to be sourced from Free Cash. 
Selectman Bastarache discussed support for source $150,000.00 out of capacity to Raise and Appropriate 
and $123,000.00 from Free Cash. Selectman Bastarache discussed the need to maintain a capacity to 
manage a debt service in the future for upcoming capital projects. Chairman Smith summarized what the 
proposed change would mean for the remaining anticipated budget gap. Philip Wonkka, Fire Chief, joined 
the meeting and offered to scale the exhaust capture system project back for the Fire Stations if it would 
help the budget situation. Chairman Smith and Selectman Bastarache both clarified that the concern is 
not an ability to fund in general, but a capacity concern about the Town’s ability to Raise and Appropriate 
for specific obligations, including capital investments. 
 
Chairman Smith reviewed the outstanding questions that will impact the anticipated remaining budget 
gap, that he estimated to be approximately $85,000.00 if Selectman Bastarache’s suggestion is accepted. 
Charles encouraged the School Committee to use the Circuit Breaker Fund to offset Special Education 
costs if necessary. Debra discussed her understanding of a past practice of the School Department not 
relying on the Circuit Breaker Fund for allowed expenses so that the surplus will be turned over to the 
General Fund as Free Cash. Debra explained that going forward she would ask the School Committee to 
factor in the reasonable use of the Circuit Breaker Fund and discontinue the past practice. Bryan offered 
caution of relying on the Circuit Breaker as it is a complex process that is based on a reimbursement after 
costs have already been incurred which makes it difficult to anticipate and budget with. Bryan added that 
certain spending thresholds must be met, and the State determines the reimbursement rate each year. 
Jennifer Eichorn, School Committee Chair, joined the meeting to further explain the estimates of the 
Circuit Breaker reimbursement for the coming year. Selectman Bastarache offered further caution on 
relying on the Fund and discussed some more of the complexities. Jennifer further clarified that the 
balance in the Fund can be an average over a two-year period. James discussed his observations from the 
most recent School Committee meeting and expressed disappointment as a taxpayer that the School 
Administration staff members are not present. Daniel Hammock offered his perspective on working with 
staff members and to continue to try to work with the Union 28 Administration. Selectman Bastarache 
offered that the Union 28 Joint Supervisory Committee meeting is also tonight.  
 
Returning to the topic of providing capacity to fund capital improvements, Chairman Smith offered that 
the $400,000.00 that was tentatively sourced from the capacity to Raise and Appropriate is far less than 
the Town has annually spent on capital improvements. Selectman Bastarache discussed the potential 
need to re-evaluate the entire Capital Improvement Plan. Debra explained that Selectman Bastarache’s 
request to re-evaluate the capital planning process may require significant work to revise the Capital 
Improvement Bylaw and policy as well as the process for replacing certain equipment. Selectman 
Bastarache acknowledged the concern and noted the understanding that other towns want to re-use 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, March 27, 2023 Page 6 of 9 
 

some of the Town’s equipment after it has been deemed surplus. Daniel Hammock encouraged Erving 
citizens to watch these meetings and hopefully note the effort that is spent to deliberate over financial 
decisions.  
 
Peter Mallet asked about the status of the FirstLight relicensing of the Northfield Mountain Project and 
potential impact on the budget. Bryan explained that there is a March 31, 2023, deadline with the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission to complete settlement negotiations and file with the Commission. 
Chairman Smith explained that the Town is involved in the process when requested and when it makes 
sense for the Town. Chairman Smtih explained that he personally, would be surprised if the license is not 
renewed. 
 
Watermain Break on River Road 
Chairman Smith discussed a watermain break this past weekend on River Road and explained that the 
Town is working through emergency procurement processes with the State. Chairman Smith explained 
that he intends to address the topic at the next Select Board meeting and finalize costs. Chairman Smith 
added that depending on final costs there may be a need to consider an appropriation at a future Town 
Meeting or a Reserve Fund transfer. Debra asked about preliminary cost estimates. Bryan explained that 
the work to fund includes the emergency repair and response, excavation, and then the permanent 
paving. Bryan explained that the initial excavation and repair work is all that has been completed at this 
time. 
 
Review of Annual Town Meeting Warrant Draft 
The Select Board, Finance Committee and Capital Planning Committee members reviewed the draft 
Annual Town Meeting Warrant. Bryan explained that he drafted the warrant and left the financial items 
blank, waiting for further direction, but that tonight’s feedback will allow him to complete those Articles.  
 
Review of Article 13: Raise & Appropriate for Capital Improvements: Chairman Smith asked about 
including the $20,000.00 appropriation for the Historical Commission grant match. The Select Board and 
Finance Committee members agreed to add $20,000.00 to the Article to fund the project. 
 
Review of Article 17: Establishment of Opioid Settlement Stabilization Fund & Dedication of Revenue: 
Chairman Smith discussed the purpose for the request and the proposed language is meant to address 
the statutory requirements to create the Fund and to comply with the settlement agreements. Bryan 
explained that the Town will be receiving payments to the Fund over a period of sixteen (16) years and 
that the Town is party to three (3) settlements with the anticipation of joining five (5) more. Selectman 
Bastarache discussed wanting to work with the Board of Health to address the best use of the funds.   
 
Review of Water Lead Service Line Inventory and Replacement Planning Grant Application 
Peter Sanders, Water & Wastewater Superintendent, joined the meeting to discuss the lead water service 
line inventory project. Chairman Smith explained that the program originally offered a forgivable loan 
that the Town applied for, and the program has been transitioned over to a 100% funded grant 
opportunity. Bryan clarified the program is accepting and reviewing applications on a rolling basis. Finance 
Committee members expressed support for pursuing the grant as the funding source if the other terms 
of the program have not changed. 
 
At 9:05 PM Chairman Smith made a motion to adjourn the joint meeting of the Select Board, Finance 
Committee and Capital Planning Committee and to continue with the Select Board meeting.  Selectman 
Bastarache seconded.  Vote: Unanimously approved. 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, March 27, 2023 Page 7 of 9 
 

 
Review of Water Lead Service Line Inventory and Replacement Planning Grant Application (continued) 
Selectman Bastarache made a motion to approve the following Authority to File: 
 
Whereas the Town of Erving, after thorough investigation, has determined that the work activity 
consisting of the Water Service Inventory and Lead Service Line Replacement Plan, is both in the public 
interest and necessary to protect the public health, and that to undertake this activity, it is necessary to 
apply for assistance; and 
 
Whereas the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP) and the Massachusetts 
Clean Water Trust (the Trust) of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, pursuant to Chapter 21 and 
Chapter 29C of the General Laws of the Commonwealth ("Chapter 21" and "Chapter 29C") are authorized 
to make loans to municipalities for the purpose of funding planning and construction activities relative to 
Drinking Water Protection Projects; and 
 
Whereas, the Applicant has examined the provisions of the Act, Chapter 21 and Chapter 29C, and believes 
it to be in the public interest to file a loan application. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town of Erving as follows: 

1. That the Town Administrator, Bryan Smith, is hereby authorized on behalf of the Applicant to 
file applications and execute agreements for grant and/or loan assistance as well as furnishing 
such information, data and documents pertaining to the applicant for a grant(s) and/or loan(s) 
as may be required; and otherwise to act as the authorized representative of the Applicant in 
connection with this application; 

2. That the purpose of said loan(s), if awarded, shall be to planning activities. 
3. That if said award is made the Applicant agrees to pay those costs which constitute the 

required Applicant's share of the project cost. 
Selectman Bembury seconded. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Review Professional Services Engineering Agreement- Water Tank Mixer Project 
The Select Board members reviewed a proposal from Tighe & Bond for professional engineering services 
for the water tank mixer project. Selectman Bastarache discussed his reviewed tasks 1 through 3 in the 
proposal, and wanting to ensure that Town staff will spend minimal time on this project. Chairman Smith 
explained that he wants to make sure there is sufficient time spent on the project from Tighe & Bond. The 
Select Board members expressed no further concerns. Selectman Bembury made a motion to engage 
Tighe & Bond for professional engineering services for the water storage tank mixer project, in the amount 
of $26,0000, and to authorize Bryan Smith, Town Administrator, to execute all necessary agreements. 
Chairman Smith seconded. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Discussion Regarding Lillians Way Streetlighting Project 
The Select Board members reviewed a memorandum from Bryan regarding the status of the proposed 
project to replace decorative streetlighting on Lillians Way. Selectman Bastarache provided the Select 
Board with a general overview of the recent community meeting that was held with the neighbors on 
Lillians Way. Selectman Bastarache explained the current situation with two (2) damaged fixtures and 
discussed the recommendation for the installation of three (3) fixtures and the approximate locations of 
each. Selectman Bastarache discussed the request from the residents to not extend the lights down to 
the cul-de-sac. Selectman Bastarache explained that the Town could explore options to replace the 
fixtures with similar fixtures on concrete footings with new conduit and service lines. Selectman 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, March 27, 2023 Page 8 of 9 
 

Bastarache explained that another option may be to explore solar powered fixtures and that the residents 
expressed support for exploring a solar option. Selectman Bastarache discussed the preference for 
maintaining more of a decorative style with downward emitting fixtures to illuminate the roadway and 
sidewalks. Chairman Smith asked about information on fixtures that are solar powered.  Bryan explained 
that the Town is looking for options with vendors and will be checking references for communities that 
have used the proposed equipment. The Select Board members will review the topic again in a few weeks. 
 
Review of Bylaw Requests for Annual Town Meeting (revisited) 
The Select Board members revisited the review of the proposed Bylaw requests for consideration at the 
Annual Town Meeting. 
 
Review of Personnel Bylaw: The Select Board members discussed inclusion of the proposed Personnel 
Bylaw in the Annual Town Meeting warrant draft. The Select Board members expressed support and will 
review the proposed language again in the warrant draft at the next meeting. 
 
Review of Bylaw Editorial Changes Bylaw (Revisited): The Select Board members agreed to include the 
Bylaw Editorial Changes Bylaw in the Annual Town Meeting warrant draft, as amended earlier in the 
meeting. 
 
Review of Proposed Minutes Bylaw (revisited) 
The Select Board members revisited the proposed Meeting Minutes Bylaw and Chairman Smith suggested 
striking the first sentence in Section 4 of proposed Bylaw. Jacquelyn discussed the practice that has been 
in place and requested consideration for Executive Session minutes and the delays between the meeting 
and when the matter is complete, and the minutes can be released. Jacquelyn discussed efforts to provide 
templates to boards and commissions that need further support and guidance. 
 
Review of the Proposed Winter & Snow Emergency Parking Ban Bylaw: The Select Board members 
reviewed the proposed Bylaw for the Winter and Snow Emergency Parking Ban. Bryan explained the 
approach that was taken with the proposed language, incorporating examples from neighboring 
communities like Montague.  Bryan discussed looking for further guidance on the notice that will be issued 
to warn residents when an emergency is declared. Bryan discussed strategies used by other towns. 
Selectman Bembury advocated for a combination of approaches to ensure that residents are informed. 
Bryan suggested including a minimum method in the Bylaw and discussed that the Town can always use 
more methods that evolve as technology and resident needs change. Selectman Bastarache suggested 
using social media and the reverse notification system for informing residents. The Select Board members 
discussed challenges with being too specific in the Section of the Bylaw regarding notification. Selectman 
Bastarache suggested directing the notification process to a policy that can be updated by the Select 
Board. Chairman Smith suggested support for post the entrances to the Town for the annual Winter 
Parking Ban. James suggested the use of a push notification system. Selectman Bembury asked about 
including a formal enforcement section. Chairman Smith clarified that the proposed Bylaw directs the 
penalties to a central Bylaw in the Town Code. The Select Board members discussed their preferences for 
addressing fines and penalties for bylaws.  
 
Review of Proposed Cable Advisory Committee Bylaw: The Select Board members reviewed the proposed 
Bylaw for the establishment of the Cable Advisory Committee and expressed support for inclusion in the 
Annual Town Meeting warrant.   
 
 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, March 27, 2023 Page 9 of 9 
 

Adjournment 
At 9:52 PM Chairman Smith made a motion to adjourn. Selectman Bastarache seconded. Vote: 
Unanimously approved. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Bryan Smith 
Town Administrator 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, December 18, 2023 Page 1 of 6 
 

Board:  Select Board / Water Commissioner’s Meeting 
Date:  Monday, December 18, 2023 
Location: Senior & Community Center, 1 Care Drive, Erving, MA 01344 
 
Select Board Present:   Jacob Smith, Scott Bastarache, James Loynd 
Finance Committee Present:   Deb Smith, Dan Hammock, Ben Fellows, Thomas Duffy, Charles Zilinski 
Capital Planning Committee Present: Linda Downs-Bembury, Deb Smith, Jacob Smith, Ben Fellows  
 
Chairman Smith stated that the meeting is being recorded and broadcast.  
 
At 6:06 PM Chairman Smith called the meeting to order. 
 
Executive Session 
At 6:06 PM Chairman Smith made a motion enter into Executive Session pursuant to Massachusetts 
General Law Chapter 30A, Section 21 (a) (2) to conduct strategy sessions in preparation for negotiations 
with non-union personnel…and contract negotiations with non-union personnel regarding Town 
Administrator; 
 
And immediately following to enter Executive Session pursuant to Massachusetts General Law Chapter 
30A, Section 21 (a) (3) to discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining …if an open meeting may 
have a detrimental effect on the bargaining … position of the public body and the chair so declares. 
Chairman Smith stated that he does so declare. (AFSCME, Wastewater & Water Unit); Chairman Smith 
stated that the Select Board will return to Regular Session. Selectman Bastarache seconded. Roll call vote: 

Selectman Loynd  Aye 
Selectman Bastarache Aye 
Chairman Smith Aye 

 
At 7:06 PM Chairman Smith resumed Regular Session. 
 
Review of Police Department Policy 4.28 Police Vehicles – 3rd Reading 
The Select Board members conducted a third reading of Police Department policy 4.28, titled Police 
Vehicles and expressed no concerns with the revisions. Selectman Bastarache made a motion to approve 
the Police Department Policy 4.28 Police Vehicles as amended with the revision date of 12/18/23, 
seconded by Selectman Loynd. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Meeting Minutes of January 30, 2023 
The Select Board members reviewed the meeting minutes for Monday, January 30, 2023. Selectman 
Bastarache made a motion to approve the meeting minutes of January 30, 2023 as written, seconded by 
Selectman Loynd. Vote:  Unanimously approved. 
 
Review and Approval of Calendar Year 2023 Alcoholic Beverage Licensing Annual Report 
The Select Board members had no concerns.  Selectman Loynd made a motion to accept the Calendar 
Year 2023 Alcoholic Beverage Licensing Annual Report as written, seconded by Selectman Bastarache. 
Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Review & Approval of Calendar Year 2024 Alcoholic Beverage Licensing Seasonal Certification Form 
The Select Board members discussed that the liquor license for Franklin Grocery will not be renewed for 
2024.  Selectman Bastarache made a motion to approve the Calendar Year 2024 Alcoholic Beverage 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, December 18, 2023 Page 2 of 6 
 

Licensing Seasonal Certification Form as written, seconded by Selectman Loynd. Vote: Unanimously 
approved. 
 
Review and Issuance of Calendar Year 2024 Beverage Licenses 
Selectman Bastarache made a motion to renew a Restaurant/All Alcohol Liquor License, effective January 
1, 2024 through December 31, 2024 to the French King Bowling Center at 55 French King Highway, Erving, 
MA, seconded by Selectman Loynd. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Selectman Bastarache made a motion to renew an Innkeeper Liquor License, effective January 1, 2024 
through December 31, 2024 to the French King Motor Inn at 129 French King Highway, Erving, MA, 
seconded by Selectman Loynd.  Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Selectman Bastarache made a motion to renew a Retail Package Store Liquor License effective January 1, 
2024 through December 31, 2024 to the Flis Market at 5 West Main Street, Erving, MA, seconded by 
Selectman Loynd.  Vote: Unanimously approved.  
 
Selectman Bastarache made a motion to renew a Retail Package Store Liquor License, effective January 
1, 2024 through December 31, 2024 to the Weatherheads Store at 63 French King Highway, Erving, MA, 
seconded by Selectman Loynd. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Joint Meeting with Finance Committee & Capital Planning Committee 
Chairman Smith called the joint meeting with the Finance Committee and Capital Planning Committee to 
order at 7:16 PM. 
 
Review & Discussion Regarding Senior Housing Development RFP and Submission 
Selectman Loynd recused himself from the discussion due to a conflict of interest.  Thomas Duffy, from 
the Finance Committee, also recused himself due to a conflict of interest. 
 
The Select Board discussed the recommendations that were presented by the Senior Housing Committee 
last week and explained that they are working with Town Counsel around the difference in proposal and 
request, and the review of the land issue.  It was mentioned that Town Counsel has reviewed the proposal 
and found it to be satisfactory and is comfortable with the Town proceeding. There was discussion that 
review is needed for the proposal and land, creating an ANR (approval not required) and working with 
Rural Development, Inc. (RDI) regarding the parcel lines. Selectman Bastarache asked about reformatting 
of the layout. Debra Smith expressed concern that eighteen (18) units will not be enough and is concerned 
that workforce housing will be a part of it. She said that she worries that it is not for Erving residents only. 
William Bembury and Jacquelyn Boyden from the Senior Housing Committee joined the discussion.  
Jacquie explained that at first, they were also concerned. She explained that RDI couldn’t make 30 units 
feasible with the financial modeling.  Jacquie explained that the Senior Housing Committee and RDI had 
many give-and-take conversations about the number of units and what RDI was able to offer and what 
the Committee was willing to accept and work with. Bill Bembury stressed that the proposal from RDI for 
eighteen (18) units for senior housing and the ten (10) multi-generational units with handicap accessibility, 
is the first response out of three (3) RFP’s (Request for Proposals) that the Town has issued and the 
likelihood of getting a proposal for a 30-unit project is never going to happen. Bill expressed that the Town 
needs to seize this opportunity, or the project will never happen. Bill explained that RDI will help with 
grants and other funding opportunities. He said that we are competing with other towns that are applying 
for senior center grants as well. Chairman Smith asked about the topographical challenges and costs. 
Jacquie explained RDI’s rationale in wanting to separate multi-generational from the senior housing units.  



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, December 18, 2023 Page 3 of 6 
 

Selectman Bastarache said he was in favor of moving forward. Finance Committee member Benjamin 
Fellows expressed that he is also in favor of moving forward but stated that we should not refer to it as 
‘Erving’ senior housing if it won’t be strictly Erving residents. Jacquie stated that RDI indicated that they 
would help to try to get local preference and that it's not off the table just yet, and they will work toward 
that goal, but there is no guarantee. Town Planner, Mariah Kurtz, joined the discussion and explained that 
‘local preference’ is a tool that is allowed during a lottery, and she explained the complexities and logistical 
formulas involved. Mariah stated that the wait list to get into senior housing may not be an accurate 
representation of the senior population’s need.  Bryan expressed the reminder of Bill’s earlier statement 
that we are competing for grant money and other funding possibilities. Jacquie said it’s important to 
realize that the developer uses state and federal funds, so it must be offered to everyone, not just Erving.  
Finance Committee member Daniel Hammock expressed concern that this may not be what Erving wants.  
Chairman Smith, Dan Hammock and Deb Smith all stated that they don’t feel it’s enough senior units and 
encouraged more discussion that can happen to get more units as well as more multi-generational units. 
Dan suggested that maybe Erving would be willing to put more money in if more units were available.  
Mariah stated that they asked the questions already to RDI and RDI explained in length the limitations. 
Finance Committee member Charles Zilinski mentioned that the cost per unit was quite large for the 
$15,000,000.00 project and asked about Erving’s portion. Jacquie confirmed that out of the 
$15,000,000.00, Erving’s portion is $448,188.00.  Mariah explained that they need to overestimate rather 
than underestimate. Dan asked about the process, next steps, and timeline. Town Administrator, Bryan 
Smith, broke it all down. Chairman Smith made a motion to award the senior housing/multi-generational 
housing procurement to Rural Development Inc., conditional upon being approved at Town Meeting, 
seconded by Selectman Bastarache. Finance Committee member Daniel Hammock motioned for the 
Finance Committee to recommend moving forward with Rural Development, Inc., seconded by Finance 
Committee member, Ben Fellows. Linda Downs-Bembury from the Capital Planning Committee made a 
motion to support Rural Development, Inc.’s senior housing proposal, Jacob Smith seconded.  
Vote: 
 Finance Committee, Capital Planning Committee and Select Board: 

Deb Smith  Aye 
 Ben Fellows  Aye 
 Dan Hammock  Aye 
 Charles Zilinski  Aye 
 Linda Downs-Bembury Aye 
 Chairman Smith Aye 
 Selectman Bastarache Aye 
 
Selectman Loynd and Finance Committee Member Thomas Duffy rejoined the meeting. 
 
Discussion Regarding Request to Schedule a Special Town Meeting 
Town Administrator, Bryan Smith, explained the need for the School Committee to sign the bid for 
transportation agreement. He said the bid opening was on December 7, 2023 and suggested the Special 
Town Meeting be scheduled in January, or no later than February 7, 2024 as this is a 5-year contract. 
Additionally, Bryan suggested bringing back the elected officials wages and adding them to this upcoming 
warrant. He asked if anyone had items to add to this warrant. Deb Smith mentioned the capital 
stabilization fund for school blinds ($30,000); she asked to close this out as there has been no movement 
for five (5) years. Bryan said he will talk to the School Committee and School Administration to get a status 
update and will inform them that the account will be proposed for closure unless they have a concrete 
plan. Bryan will bring the status from the School Administration to the next meeting.  Discussion revealed 
that the Recreation Commission is closing out a good portion of their unused capital project funds.  Dan 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, December 18, 2023 Page 4 of 6 
 

Hammock from the Finance Committee made a motion to include the elected official wages on the 
upcoming Special Town Meeting Warrant, seconded by Thomas Duffy, unanimously approved. The Boards 
will meet jointly again on January 11, 2024.  Two dates discussed for the Special Town Meeting are January 
24, 2024, or January 31, 2024, depending upon what happens with the joint meeting of the Capital 
Planning Committee and the Select Board on January 8, 2024. 
 
Chairman Smith made a motion at 9:00 PM to adjourn the joint meeting with Capital Planning Committee 
and Finance Committee, seconded by Selectman Bastarache. Vote:  Unanimously approved. 
 
Review of Engineering Services Proposal – Wastewater Asbestos Pipe Removal Project 
Town Administrator, Bryan Smith, explained that this is an engineering proposal to start the project.  
Wastewater Superintendent, Peter Sanders, stated that the pipe has been piled up for approximately 
twenty (20) years.  He indicated that the matter was brought to their attention, and it needs to be dealt 
with. The proposal figure is $7,000.00 for all engineering services. Selectman Bastarache is concerned 
that the cost is too high, as the pipe is on the surface and doesn’t need to be dug out. After some 
discussion about cost and services the Board asked Pete to get three (3) quotes. 
 
Review of Professional Services Proposal – Asbestos Abatement Oversight – Historical Building and Fire 
Station 
Chairman Smith says quote from Atlas looks more reasonable. The Select Board members agreed that 
once the three (3) quotes come in from the Wastewater project come in, they can decide about this 
project from there. 
 
Review of Flags, Banners & Signs on Governmental Flagpoles, Buildings & Properties Policy Draft – 1st 
Reading 
The Select Board members conducted a first reading of the draft Flags, Banners & Signs on Governmental 
Flagpoles, Buildings & Properties policy. Selectman Bastarache says that having this policy is important.  
After a brief discussion of the Select Board members, Chairman Smith suggested replacing “town 
business” with “town sponsored” in section 12.  The Select Board members agreed and will conduct a 
second reading at the next meeting. 
  
Close Swamp Road Engineering Agreement with Weston & Sampson 
Chairman Smith stated he had a meeting with Weston & Sampson and agreed to mutually discontinue 
work on the Swamp Road Bridge project so that the Town may work through the Small Bridge Program 
with the Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDOT). Chairman Smith explained they would 
write a discontinuance by convenience letter to close out the agreement.  Selectman Bastarache made a 
motion to sign the letter to terminate and give Chairman Smith the authorization to sign the letter, 
seconded by Selectman Loynd. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Review and Issuance of Calendar Year 2024 Business Licenses 
Chairman Smith made a motion to renew an Automatic Amusement Device License, effective January 1, 
2024 through December 31, 2024 to the French King Bowling Center at 55 French King Highway, Erving, 
MA, seconded by Selectman Loynd. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Chairman Smith made a motion to renew a Common Victualers License, effective January 1, 2024 through 
December 31, 2024 to Dunkin Donuts at 63 French King Highway, Erving, MA; and to Flis Market at 5 West 
Main Street, Erving, MA; and to Freight House at 11 East Main Street, Erving, MA; and to the French King 
Bowling Center at 55 French King Highway, Erving, MA; and to Bagels ‘N More at 7 West Main Street, 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, December 18, 2023 Page 5 of 6 
 

Erving, MA; and to the French King Restaurant at 126 French King Highway, Erving, MA, seconded by 
Selectman Loynd. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Chairman Smith made a motion to renew and Auto Repair License, effective January 1, 2024 through 
December 31, 2024 to Greenfield Automotive at 38 French King Highway, Erving, MA, seconded by 
Selectman Loynd. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Selectman Bastarache made a motion to renew a Class I: Agent of Vehicle Manufacturer License, effective 
January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024 to Tim’s RV, Inc., at 15 East Main Street, Erving, MA, seconded 
by Selectman Loynd. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Selectman Bastarache made a motion to renew a Class II: Auto Repair/Retail License, effective January 1, 
2024 through December 31, 2024 to Accurate Automotive at 21 Lester Street, Erving, MA; and to Rose 
Ledge Companies at 21 Poplar Mountain Road, Erving, MA; and to Stoneville Auto at 64 East Main Street, 
Erving, MA; and to Tim’s RV, Inc. at 15 East Main Street, Erving, MA, seconded by Selectman Loynd. Vote: 
Unanimously approved. 
 
Selectman Bastarache made a motion to renew a Class II: Used Vehicle Retail License, effective January 
1, 2024 through December 31, 2024 to Erving Equipment at 38 French King Highway, Erving, MA, seconded 
by Selectman Loynd. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Selectman Loynd made a motion to renew a Class III: Buy & Sell Vehicle Parts License, effective January 
1, 2024 through December 31, 2024 to Rose Ledge Companies at 21 Poplar Mtn Road, Erving, MA; and to 
Stoneville Auto at 64 East Main Street, Erving, MA, seconded by Selectman Bastarache. Vote: 
Unanimously approved. 
 
Selectman Loynd made a motion to renew a Motel License, effective January 1, 2024 through December 
31, 2024 to French King Motor Inn at 129 French King Highway, Erving, MA, seconded by Selectman 
Bastarache. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Review of Bridge Street Reconstruction & Maple Avenue Paving Project Bid Documents 
Selectman Bastarache questioned the base bid cost. Town Administrator, Bryan Smith, explained that it 
is part of the strategy to make a bid work for the contractor.  After a brief discussion, the Select Board 
members agreed to revise the verbiage in 12a.  They discussed and agreed to remove William Bembury’s 
name anywhere that it appeared in the invitation to bid as he is no longer a Selectman.  Chairman Smith 
made a motion to approve the Bridge Street Reconstruction & Maple Avenue Paving Project Bid 
Documents and release as amended, seconded by Selectman Loynd. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 
Review of Proposed Personnel Policies & Procedures Manual Draft – 6th Reading 
Chairman Smith noted changes and suggested they carry to the next meeting. Town Administrator, Bryan 
Smith, informed the Select Board Members that the language changes from the last meeting have been 
made. He mentioned that Town Counsel had responded to Parental Leave and Counsel proposed 
verbiage. Selectman Loynd said he is okay with the verbiage around Parental Leave. Bryan made a note 
of several verbiage change suggestions from the Select Board collectively from page 9 through 12 and 
agreed to bring Parental Leave and Bereavement Leave discussion back to the next meeting. Chairman 
Smith made a motion to adopt the Holiday Section on page 17, Article 4, Subsection 1 after striking the 
last sentence, seconded by Selectman Bastarache. Vote: Unanimously approved. 
 



Meeting Minutes  

Select Board Monday, December 18, 2023 Page 6 of 6 
 

Next Meeting 
The Select Board agreed to meet again on January 8, 2024. 
 
Adjournment 
At 10:20 PM Chairman Smith made a motion to adjourn. Selectman Loynd seconded. Vote: Unanimously 
approved. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Elizabeth Sicard 
Administrative Assistant  



 

Jacob A. Smith, Chair 
Scott Bastarache 

James Loynd 
 Select Board 

 
 

Bryan Smith 
Town Administrator 

 

TOWN OF ERVING 

SELECT BOARD 
 

12 East Main Street 
ERVING, MASSACHUSETTS 01344  

Tel. 413-422-2800 
Fax 413-422-2808 

Email: administrator@erving-ma.gov
 
January 19, 2024 
 
To: Select Board 
 
From: Bryan Smith, Town Administrator 
CC: Elizabeth Sicard, Administrative Assistant 
 
RE: Conservation Commission Appointment and Letter of Interest  
 
The Conservation Commission is a five (5) member board with staggered three (3) year terms.  
The Conservation Commission currently has one (1) vacancy. The notice that the Town was 
seeking volunteers to serve on the Conservation Commission was shared in the Around Town 
Newsletter November 2023 edition.  As of January 19, 2024, I have received one (1) letter of 
interest from resident Maureen “Rinky” Black. The letter is enclosed for your review. 
 
The recommended vote language below provides for staggered three-year terms that align with 
our annual appointment schedule. 
 
Recommended vote language: 
 
A motion to appoint Maureen Black as a member of the Conservation Commission, effective 

January 22, 2024, with a term ending June 30, 2025. 

 

























 

Jacob A. Smith, Chair 
Scott Bastarache 

James Loynd 
 Select Board 

 
 

Bryan Smith 
Town Administrator 

 

TOWN OF ERVING 

SELECT BOARD 
 

12 East Main Street 
ERVING, MASSACHUSETTS 01344  

Tel. 413-422-2800 
Fax 413-422-2808 

Email: administrator@erving-ma.gov
 
January 19, 2024 
 
To: Select Board 
 
From: Bryan Smith, Town Administrator 
CC: Peter Sanders, Water & Wastewater Superintendent 
 
RE: Renewal of the Wastewater Agreement with the Town of Montague 
 
The Town of Montague and the Town of Erving have an ongoing relationship for the treatment of 
wastewater for the village of Millers Falls.  The Select Boards of both towns are the authorized 
entities to enter into such agreements.  The previous agreement was negotiated in 2014 for a term 
of 10 years and is up for renewal.  I have included a copy of the expiring agreement for your 
review. This agreement expires in October of 2024.   
 
While we have time to complete this work, we need to begin the process in the coming months.  I 
respectfully request that the Select Board identify a representative to have initial negotiations with 
the Town of Montague representative.  The Town Administrators and Wastewater Superintendents 
of both towns have also accompanied the representatives as resources for these conversations.   
 
Additionally, when planning the Annual Town Meeting, I would recommend that we include an 
article seeking an authorization for the Select Board to enter into another agreement for a term of 
10 years. 





















 

Jacob A. Smith, Chair 
Scott Bastarache 

James Loynd 
 Select Board 

 
 

Bryan Smith 
Town Administrator 

 

TOWN OF ERVING 

SELECT BOARD 
 

12 East Main Street 
ERVING, MASSACHUSETTS 01344  

Tel. 413-422-2800 
Fax 413-422-2808 

Email: administrator@erving-ma.gov
 
January 19, 2024 
 
To: Select Board 
 
From: Bryan Smith, Town Administrator 
 
RE: Review of the Town Planner Position Description 
 
As you are aware, we anticipate a vacancy in the Town Planner position as Mariah Kurtz prepares 
for her next opportunity. I am very appreciative of Mariah’s work to develop this position, to 
connect the Town with regional and state opportunities, and for serving as a point of contact for 
residents and businesses trying to navigate regulatory processes. 
 
Much has evolved for the Town with the creation of this position and the Town has engaged in 
more grant opportunities to fund infrastructure improvements and to further Town initiatives. 
While this position has some unique projects that fall under the Community Planning Office, much 
of the work is to collaborate with other Town departments, boards and commissions to understand 
their needs, identity opportunities, and support initiatives that further those goals.  I would 
encourage the Select Board to authorize the hiring process to fill this vacancy as quickly as possible 
as we are currently amid closing out some grants/projects, with other initiatives launching.   
 
I have included a copy of the currently approved position description for Select Board review. 



Town of Erving, Massachusetts 
Position Description 

 

Erving, MA 
Town Planner  

Page 1 of 4 
 

Position Title: Town Planner Compensation Schedule: General Government 
Department Planning Level: F 
Reports to: Town Administrator FLSA Exempt: No 
SB Approved: 10-03-2022 Essential: No 

 
Statement of Duties:  Performs routine or semi-routine but detailed or complex administrative 
duties and support the day-to-day operation of planning, land use, economic development, 
coordinating both short- and long-range plans, and grant funded activities of the Town of Erving. 
Oversees the organization, application, development, implementation and management of 
planning and grant funded projects. Performance of duties requires a thorough knowledge of 
departmental operations and the exercise of judgement and initiative in completing tasks, 
particularly in situations not clearly defined by precedent or established procedures. The employee 
is required to perform all similar or related duties as required. 
 
Supervision Required:  Under the general direction of the Town Administrator, performs 
complex and responsible duties requiring a high level of initiative and independent judgment in 
the planning, administration and execution of the department’s services, in accordance with 
applicable Massachusetts General Laws, Town policies, Town bylaws and relevant state, federal 
and local regulations and standards. 
 
Supervisory Responsibility:  Employee may provide direction and supervision to Planning 
Assistant, interns, consultants, contractors, and vendors. Will work collaboratively with Town, 
regional and state boards, agencies, and personnel as required. 
 
Confidentiality:  Employee has access to department-related confidential information including 
Planning Board and Conservation Commission executive session discussions related to pending 
litigation and/or negotiations, bid proposals and personal information about citizens and 
developers related to planning programs and proposed developments. 
 
Judgment:  Guidelines only provide limited guidance for performing the work. They may be in 
the form of administrative or organizational policies, general principals, legislation or directives 
that pertain to a specific department or functional area. Extensive judgment and ingenuity are 
required to develop new or adapt existing methods and approaches for accomplishing objectives 
or to deal with new or unusual requirements within the limits of the guidelines or policies. 
 
Complexity:  The work consists of functions and processes such as planning, organizing, 
controlling, coordinating, evaluating, integrating activities. 
 
Work Environment:  The work environment involves everyday discomforts typical of offices, 
with occasional exposure to outside elements. Noise or physical surroundings may be distracting, 
but conditions are generally not unpleasant. 
 
Public Contact:  Duties involve constant contact with local, state and federal government 
officials, community leaders and any other individuals to protect and promote the municipality's 



Town of Erving, Massachusetts 
Position Description 

 

Erving, MA 
Town Planner  

Page 2 of 4 
 

overall interest. Employee must possess a high degree of diplomacy and judgment and must be 
able to work effectively with and influence all types of persons. Duties require a well-developed 
sense of strategy and timing in representing the municipality effectively in critical and important 
situations that may influence the wellbeing of the municipality. 
 
Accountability: Consequences of errors, missed deadlines or poor judgement could have far 
reaching effects on the municipality's ability to deliver services and the public's confidence in the 
town government and can result in monetary loss, legal repercussions, and increased labor/material 
costs. 
 
Occupational Risk: Duties of the job present little potential for injury. Risk exposure is similar to 
that found in typical office settings. Employee will be required to work beyond normal business 
hours in response to emergency situations and to attend evening meetings or other functions. 
 
Essential Functions: 
The essential functions or duties listed below are intended only as illustrations of the various type 
of work that may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them 
from the position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment to the position. 
 

1. Has a working knowledge of the Town Master Plan, Open Space & Recreation Plan and 
individual department studies related to their needs and goals. 
 

2. Makes recommendations regarding regulations, policies and procedures involving 
community planning and development and advises boards, commissions and committees 
as needed in the planning and economic development areas.  The Planner will work on 
short- and long-term plans as well as business and economic development projects and 
initiatives.  
 

3. Explores, secures and administers grants for various planning initiatives.  Assists with 
community development grants and projects.  Responsible for periodic or intermittent 
progress reports for each grant or project to the Town Administrator as requested; prepares 
all mandatory and supplemental or requested reports ensuring compliance with grant 
requirements.  

 
4. Answers questions and concerns related to projects and/or regulations; ensures that 

planning processes and land use decisions are transparent and open to the public.  
 

5. Attends various Town board and/or committee meetings as assigned and provides boards, 
committees, and departments with technical support as necessary. Collaborates with 
Planning Board and Conservation Commission and consultants on construction 
developments. 

 
6. Assists with planning studies, including the preparation of maps and graphic materials and 

the collection of data as needed. Assists in the preparation and maintenance of reports, 
maps, records, and files in support of departmental operations.  



Town of Erving, Massachusetts 
Position Description 

 

Erving, MA 
Town Planner  

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
7. Research and supply necessary and important information as needed in preparation of 

reports; helps mediate and problem-solve solutions to unanticipated problem that have 
developed in the field and work with other Town departments, regulatory agencies, 
contractors, and property owners to correct noted deficiencies.  

 
8. Assists public on general inquiries relating to planning and land use. 

 
9. Facilitates public input on various planning initiatives through public meetings, workshops 

and other means. 
 

10. Develops fiscal year budget(s) for Planning departments. 
 

11. Serves as the Town’s representative for the Franklin Regional Planning Board and the 
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Committee. 

 
12. Maintains professional competence through participation in workshops, seminars and 

training programs provide by professional organizations. 
 

13. Performs special projects and related responsibilities as initiated and requested. Performs 
other duties as required. 
 

Minimum Qualifications: 
 
Education and Experience:  Baccalaureate degree in a discipline related to planning, grant 
strategies, or business development; minimum of three to five (3-5) years as a Town Planner or 
experience in public sector planning; or any equivalent combination of education, training and 
experience which provides the required knowledge, skills and abilities to perform the essential 
functions of the job may be considered.  
 
Must demonstrate a track record of substantive level of responsibility with grant applications, 
planning projects, and project management; must demonstrate skills in the context of formal 
organizations, specifically municipal organizations and administration including standard budget 
monitoring practices. Demonstrated ability to communicate complex information and data analysis 
to various constituency groups.  
 
Preference for demonstrated experience working with ArcGIS.  
 
Special Requirements:  
 Valid Massachusetts Class D Motor Vehicle Operator License 

May be necessary to attend evening or weekending meetings on occasion.  
 
Knowledge, Abilities and Skill 
Knowledge: Knowledge of or ability to learn the principles and practices of community 
development and grants management; and of state and federal laws, regulations, or programs 



Town of Erving, Massachusetts 
Position Description 

 

Erving, MA 
Town Planner  

Page 4 of 4 
 

related to planning, economic development, and grant management; Thorough understanding of 
local zoning bylaws and subdivision regulations; Comprehensive knowledge of the various 
financial requirements of municipal government as well as the State's Procurement Law; 
Experience with research methods and report writing; Familiarity with grant preparation and 
administration. 
 
Abilities:  Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with diverse interest 
groups and work cooperatively with supervisor, staff, and elected or appointed officials and the 
general public. Ability to plan, analyze, coordinate projects, consult and offer advice, requires 
highly effective written and oral communication skills. Must perform all aspects of job 
responsibilities with honesty and integrity. Strong organizational skills in a multi-task environment 
required. Ability to plan and work with general supervision or specifically as directed; ability to 
work on several on-going task and assist to coordinate community economic development, 
planning and research projects. Ability to keep accurate and detailed records; apply organizational 
skills efficiently with attention to detail. Ability to meet deadlines and work effectively in high 
pressure situations. Ability to exercise tact, resourcefulness, sensitivity, and persuasion in dealing 
with a variety of individuals from a broad socioeconomic and culturally diverse base. Ability to 
maintain confidentiality of personal and financial information. 
 
Skill: Proficient oral and written communication skills.  Effective supervisory and personal 
computer software skills in support of department operations.  Effective budgetary management 
skills. 
 
Physical and Mental Requirements  
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee 
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be 
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the position's essential functions. 
 
Physical Skills: Minimal physical effort is required to perform the essential functions of the 
position. Frequent sitting, talking, walking, and mental concentration for prolonged periods are 
required; occasionally required to lift and/or move objects or books of up to 20 pounds. Must be 
able to communicate and be understood clearly, give presentations or participate in other public 
discourse situations. Position requires the ability to access off-site premises that may not be 
handicap accessible. 
 
Motor Skills:  Duties are largely mental rather than physical, but the job may occasionally require 
the application of basic motor skills to perform activities such as operating a motor vehicle, moving 
objects, operating a telephone system, computer and/or most other office equipment, keyboarding 
and/or word processing. The employee is frequently required to reach with hands and arms and sit 
and talk and hear for extended periods of time. 
 
Visual Skills:  Visual demands require the employee to regularly read documents for general 
understanding and analytical purposes. The employee may be required to determine color 
differences. 





 

Jacob A. Smith, Chair 
Scott Bastarache 

James Loynd 
 Select Board 

 
 

Bryan Smith 
Town Administrator 

 

TOWN OF ERVING 

SELECT BOARD 
 

12 East Main Street 
ERVING, MASSACHUSETTS 01344  

Tel. 413-422-2800 
Fax 413-422-2808 

Email: administrator@erving-ma.gov
 
January 19, 2024 
 
To: Select Board 
 
From: Bryan Smith, Town Administrator 
CC: Mariah Kurtz, Town Planner 
 
RE: Request to Release RFP for the Former IP Mill Site 
 
In recent months, the Town has heard from a few potential developers that may be interested in 
the opportunity to redevelop the former IP Mill site.  In the conversation process, the Town has 
shared all publicly available information that is available on the status of the property and 
conducted site visits.  This included copies of the prior request for proposals (RFP) documents. It 
is possible that there may be interest in responding to an RFP if the Select Board issued it.  I wanted 
to make the Select Board aware of this potential and ask if the Select Board would be interested in 
releasing the RFP with new submission deadlines.  We haven’t received any feedback that there 
are concerns with the requirements in the RFP so currently I am not proposing substantive changes 
to the existing document. 
 
If the Select Board is potentially interested, I would suggest the following initial timeline: 
 

• Wednesday, January 31, 2024- begin advertising and release the RFP 
• Wednesday, February 14, 2024- optional site visit 
• Thursday, February 22, 2024- questions due 
• Thursday, March 14, 2024- submissions due 



 

Jacob A. Smith, Chair 
Scott Bastarache 

James Loynd 
 Select Board 

 
 

Bryan Smith 
Town Administrator 

 

TOWN OF ERVING 

SELECT BOARD 
 

12 East Main Street 
ERVING, MASSACHUSETTS 01344  

Tel. 413-422-2800 
Fax 413-422-2808 

Email: administrator@erving-ma.gov
January 20, 2024 
 
To: Select Board 
From: Bryan Smith, Town Administrator 
CC: Robert Holst, Chief of Police 
 
RE: Non-unit Police Department Staff Compensation 
 
As we work to complete the compensation plan review of Town employees, I would as the Select 
Board to address the compensation schedule for non-unit Police Department employees. This 
category of employees includes: 

• Animal Officer (Grade NP1) 
• Cadet (Grade NP1) 
• Patrol Officer (part-time, not regularly scheduled) (Grade NP2) 

 
I have modified the compensation schedule in a similar manner to what was done with other non-
unit personnel.  The base table was adjusted by 4% and the step increase was adjusted from 2% to 
3%.  The number of steps was reduce from 15 to 10. I propose the following compensation 
schedule for the listed positions: 

FY 2024 
GRADE NP1 NP2 
Step 1(6) $17.92  $26.27  
Step 2 (7) $18.46  $27.06  
Step 3 (8) $19.01  $27.87  
Step 4 (9) $19.58  $28.71  
Step 5 (10) $20.17  $29.57  
Step 6 (11) $20.77  $30.45  
Step 7 (12) $21.40  $31.37  
Step 8 (13) $22.04  $32.31  
Step 9 (14) $22.70  $33.28  
Step 10 (15) $23.38  $34.28  

 
If the proposed compensation schedule is amenable, I would ask the Select Board to adopt the 
table and issue an effective date so that I may work with the employees, Chief Holst, and the 
Treasurer to make the necessary adjustments. 


	Section 0A- SB Agenda 01-22-2024
	Section 0B- Public Participation Guidelines v1-2023
	Section 1- FAC-010- Flag, Banner, & Signs Policy- DRAFT
	Section 3- Bidge St- Maple Av Layout Memorandum 1-19-2024
	Section 3A- Bridge St. Erving Layout Plan
	Section 3A- Bridge Street- Order of Public Way Layout -Final 1-22-2024
	Section 3B- Maple Ave. Erving Layout Plan 1-8-24
	Section 3B- Maple Avenue- Order of Public Way Layout -Final 1-22-2024
	Section 4A- SB Minutes 01-09-2023 DRAFT
	Section 4B- SB Minutes 03-27-2023 DRAFT
	Section 4C- SB Minutes 12-18-2023 DRAFT
	Section 5A- Conservation Commission Memorandum 1-19-2024
	Section 5B- Conservation Commission Interest Letter- Black
	Section 6- ERVING 23EMPG Contract
	Section 7A- Montague Wastewater Memorandum 1-19-2024
	Section 7B- Montague Agreement 2014
	Section 8A- Town Planner Memorandum 1-19-2024
	Section 8B- Town Planner Description - approved 10-3-2022
	Section 9- Bryant Recognition Letter
	Section 10- Former IP MIll RFP Memorandum 1-19-2024
	Section 11- Non-Unit Police Staff Compensation Memorandum 1-20-2024



